ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2004
1: 10 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Bob Lynn

Representative N ck Stepovich
Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Cheryll Heinze, Vice Chair
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve Hugh Fate
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 442
"An Act relating to the Big Gane Commercial Services Board and
to the regulation of big ganme hunting services and
transportation services; and providing for an effective date.”
- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 345
"An Act relating to fees for state park devel oped canpsites; and
providing for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 442

SHORT TI TLE: BI G GAME GUI DE BOARD & SERVI CES
SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG BUDGET & AUDI T

02/ 09/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 04 (H) RES, FIN

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2004



02/ 20/ 04 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 345
SHORT TITLE: CAMPSI TE FEES: DI SABLED VETERANS/ SENI ORS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) FATE

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED ( 1/ 2/ 04)

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H RES, FIN

02/ 04/ 04 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 04/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 04 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 20/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 442, introduced the bill and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

RON SOMERVI LLE, Vice Chair

Board of Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 442, and
answered questions fromthe nenbers.

MATT ROBUS, Director

Division of WIldlife Conservation

Departnent of Fish and Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 442, and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

JCE KLUTSCH, Menber

Al aska Prof essional Hunters Association

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 442 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

PAUL JOHNSON

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB442 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

RI CK URI ON, Director

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 20, 2004



D vi sion of Cccupational Licensing

Department of Comrunity and Econonmi ¢ Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 442 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

ROBERT HARDY, registered big ganme guide

Wasil | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 442 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative Fate,
sponsor of HB 345.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-06, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO- CHAIR BEVERLY MASEK called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Represent ati ves Masek

Dahl strom Lynn, Stepovich, Wl f, Guttenberg, and Kerttula were
present at the call to order. Representative Gatto arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 442-Bl G GAME GUI DE BOARD & SERVI CES

Nunmber 0075

CO- CHAI R MASEK announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 442, "An Act relating to the Big Gane
Commercial Services Board and to the regulation of big gane
hunting services and transportation services; and providing for
an effective date.”

Nunber 0125

REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 442, introduced the bill and answered questions from the
comittee. He told the nenbers that he represents district 29

and is the chairman of the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee, which is the reason he brings HB 442 to the commttee
t oday. Representative Sanuels explained that this bill is in

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 20, 2004



response to an audit that came out in [Decenber of 2003] that
| ooked at the problens that resulted from the Big Gane
Commercial Services Board's discontinuation. GQui des had been
licensed in Alaska since territorial days and regulated by a
board from 1973 until 1995, when it was sunsetted. A nunber of
issues and concerns have since gone unaddressed which are
identified and explored within the audit J[Audit D gest #08-
30025-03] which was done by the | egislative auditor.

Nunmber 0196

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS told the nenbers that the issues
identified in audit are as foll ows:

1. The lack of ability of the Departnent of
Community and Econom c Devel opnent (DCED), Division of
Qccupational Licensing, to coordinate with other state
and federal agencies.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS commented that he does not believe this
problemis anything but a lack of tine necessary to address al
the concerns of the new duties which DCED inherited in 1995.
The state agencies that the departnent nust deal wth on the
hunting industry are Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G),
Department of Public Safety (DPS), Departnment of Natural
Resources (DNR), Departnent of Environnental Conservation (DEC)
Department of Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnment (DCED). On the
federal |evel the departnment must work with the Bureau of Land
Managenent (BLM, the U S. Forest Service, U S. Departnent of
Fish and WIldlife Service, the National Park Service, the US.
Coast G@uard, the Federal Aviation Admnistration (FAA), and
possi bly even the Federal Communications Comm ssion (FCC).

Nunber 0267

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said that anot her i ssue that was
identified was:

2. Lesseni ng of ethical standards.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS commented that there are no ethical
standards set in statutes. The other issues identified were:

3. Lack of detailed operating standards.
4. Weaker focus on hunter safety.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS told the nenmbers he believes sone of the

guides will testify that their clients are very savvy, worldw de
hunters and some are not. To have the standards set for both
the training of the guides and the assistant guides who are
often alone with the hunters in the field, is inportant, he
sai d.

Nunmber 0317

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS continued to list itens identified in the
audit as foll ows:

5. Dimnished disciplinary climte for unsaf e,
unet hical, or even illegal conduct.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS explained that there are no business
ethics standards to determ ne how guides or transporters conduct
busi ness. It leaves little direction to the departnent on how
to address consuner conplaints. If a conplaint cones in the
departnment would have to contact one of the agencies or possibly
the guide service. He reiterated that there are no standards
for guiding conpanies. The consumer protection angle of this
bill says that when the board is appointed, those on the board
woul d understand the industry and know what the inherent
standards shoul d be, what the statutory standards should be, and

address the concerns of the departnent. Under the current
system there are no sanctions for consunmer conplaints or gane
vi ol ati ons. The fines for infractions have been significantly

reduced, and qualification wexans are required only for
regi stered gui des, not the assistant guides.

Nunber 0440

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS told the nenbers that it has been
suggested that these issues could be addressed by the departnent
with a board; however, after neeting with nunerous players
involved, it seens if the departnent could solve the problens
al one without the expertise in-house, it would have done so. It
has been alnost 10 years since [the board's sunset], and the
audit has determned that the problens have continued to
accumul at e. He said that the reestablishnment of a board would
provi de an accessible public forumto address problens that face
the hunting industry, its interaction with hunters, and the
various private and public |and nanagers. The board could use
its expertise and wi sdom to oversee the big ganme industry and
provi de a proactive response as situations devel op,
Represent ati ve Samuel s added.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 20, 2004



Nunmber 0488

REPRESENTATI VE =~ SAMJELS  commrent ed t hat he bel i eves new
opportunities could be identified and realized by this process.
He said he strongly feels that Alaska is a world class hunting
desti nati on. Peopl e save their entire lives to cone here for a
hunti ng experience that a lot of us sinply take for granted.
Representative Sanuels stated that Alaska's reputation and
resources should be protected, so that reputation is not |ost.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS summari zed that HB 442 does three things.
It noves the responsibilities fromthe departnent to the board.

Most of the 23 pages in the bill involve changing the statute to
nove the responsibility from the departnent to the board,
changes the term "guide" to "guide outfitter", and raises

potential fines for various violations from $1,000 to $5,000, he
expl ai ned.

Number 0620
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked when the board sunset took effect.
REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS replied in 1995.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what was the rationale behind the
failure to renew the board's exi stence.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS directed Representative Lynn to the
audi t . He suggested that the legislative auditor could address
the question in detail.

Number 0670

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH surm sed that the bill would provide
for increased fines and reestablishnent of the board. He asked
if the board would inplenment the fines and be the point of final
revi ew of those fines.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS responded that the board would inplenent

an appeals process if they do issue a fine to a guide. Thi s
bill allows nore latitude to the board, as a $1,000 fine in sone
cases is not a deterrent, he explained. The board will not be
establishing a specific fine for a specific violation. The

board woul d, however, have nore latitude to issue higher fines
if warranted, he enphasized.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 20, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked who currently issues the fines.
Nurmber 0760

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS replied that he believes it 1is the
Di vi sion of Cccupational Licensing.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked for clarification that part of
the problem may have exi sted because there was no board in place
to issue the fines. Representative Stepovich questioned the
need for higher fines.

CO-CHAIR MASEK commented that Matt Robus from the Al aska
Department of Fish and Ganme is available to answer questions and
may be able to respond to that point.

Number 0831

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to the change in definitions
of guide to guide outfitter. He asked if guide outfitter is a
new category or sinply the conbination of outfit and gui de.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS replied that the intent was to include
bot h categories. He explained that sonetinmes guides are also
outfitters, and sonetinmes outfitters are not guides, but are
separate. The thought in making this change is to include both
categories and a conbination if they conbine, he summari zed.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG restated that it is not another
category. It is both groups conbi ned.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS clarified that there are guides,
outfitters, and guide/outfitters.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG commented that this is anot her
separate category.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS replied no. He explained that he did not
want to see soneone conme forward and say that he/she was not a
gui de, but a guide/outfitter.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG summarized that change was done as a
means of clarification.

Number 1008

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2004



RON SOVERVI LLE, Vice Chair, Board of Gane, testified in support
of HB 442, and answered questions fromthe nmenbers. He referred
to a letter in the nenbers' packet [dated March 18, 2003] in
which the Board of Gane requested that the nenbers consider
reestabli shnent of a Big Ganme Commercial Services Board.

MR. SOVERVILLE told the menbers that he checked with Mke
Fleagle from McGath, who is Chairman of the Board of Ganme, to
clarify his personal assessment as to where he believes the
board is going in asking that the Big Gane Commercial Services
Board be reconsidered. The primary interest of the Board of
Ganme is fostered by a couple of points, he said. The gui di ng,
outfitting, and air taxi industries in Al aska are legitimte
industries for a variety of reasons. He commented that they
provide a lot of services and have spread sone of the economc
benefits of Alaska's wldlife throughout the state. The Board
of Game is concerned about nmaintaining and enhancing the
industry as a legitimate use of wldlife, M. Sonmerville stated.

MR. SOVERVI LLE told the nenbers that one problem the board has
run into relates to the guides/outfitters/transporters, and the
unregul ated massi ve depl oynent of big gane hunters in sone areas
of the state. In sone cases there are legitimate conplaints by
rural residents that an area is being inundated, and there is no
mechani sm to control this, he explained. For exanple, if there
is a conplaint of air taxi operators dropping a |arge nunber of
hunters in the Kobuk River, the Board of Gane can say that there
is a problem and initiate a tiered system for subsistence, but

it is difficult to get out of it, he comented. The ot her
option is to say that the use of aircraft will not be allowed
for the first six weeks of the season. M. Sonerville pointed
out t hat penal i zes | ocal residents or | egitimate guide
operat ors. The Board of Gane does not have the authority to
single out certain segnents of the transportation industry and
try to regulate it. He explained that it is difficult because
the local residents will conme to the board saying that they w sh

this problemto be fixed, but the board does not have the tools
to do that.

MR. SOMERVI LLE acknow edged that another part of the problemis
that it is difficult to tell if the conplaints are legitimate,
even though they are perceived to be legitimte. He expl ai ned
that no docunentation exists so the board does not know if there
are 50, 100, 150, or 250 hunters in an area at a particular
tinme. If there were docunentation then the board could conme up
with sone kind of equation on hunter pressure. This bil

doesn't address that part of the air transportation system but

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 20, 2004



the board believes it should be part of this legislation, he
coment ed.

Nunber 1290

MR. SOMERVI LLE told the nenbers that he has spent tine talking
with Rick Uion [Drector, D vision of GCccupational Licensing,
Department of Community and Econonmic Developnent], and the
Anchorage Chanber of Commerce on this issue. He told the
committee the idea that was suggested and that he agrees with is
that sone of this problem can be addressed by additional
regul ati ons and enforcenent.

MR. SOVERVI LLE commented that if the nenbers reject this bill he
suggests that the legislature ook for sone other way to give
M. Uion and staff some way to have better control of the
i ndustries which are wunder the purview of the Division of
Qccupati onal Licensing.

MR. SOMERVI LLE shared that he believes the benefits of a board
are sonewhat obvious if the legislation is crafted properly.
One inportant point is that there would be focus from people who
are interested in the industry which is being regul ated. There
would be the notivation to do sonething about the problens
facing the industry; the expertise to do sonething about it; and
the result would be the devel opnent of enforcenent, standards,
and ethics, he said. M. Sonerville told the nenbers that he
believes M. Uion is capable of getting all of this down on
paper, but the ability to inplement it in the field would be a
matter of debate.

MR. SOMERVI LLE suggested that if this legislation is crafted in
a certain way it could be an opportunity for the board to be

used in a slightly different fashion. It could be used as a
mechani sm to enhance the people's use of the resource in the
rural areas for econom c purposes. |In other words, he suggested

that the Big Gane Commercial Services Board be used to help
craft courses for people in smaller comunities so they can
beconme class A assistant guides for instance. M. Sonerville
suggested that the legislation be nodified so that course work
could be used as a substitute for part of the requirenents to
become a class A assistant quide. It would be a trenmendous
benefit to an adult living in a small comunity who has 15 or 20
years of hunting experience and maintaining trophy aninmals to be
able to take a course and qualify so that he could work under a
guide. It would be a way to enhance the use of these resources
for commercial purposes, M. Sonerville said. He told the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 20, 2004



commttee that M. Fleagle pointed out to himthat it would be
necessary for there to be a change in attitude in sone of these
small comunities to accept this. Providing this opportunity is
a legitimate way to provide econom c opportunities for people in
Rural Al aska, he stated.

Number 1506

MR. SOVERVI LLE asked that there be sone accommobdation in the
bill that says if hunters or big ganme animals are transported
that sone reporting requirenments nust be inplemented and given
to the Board of Gane. He told the nenbers that this would help
the Board of Ganme in addressing sonme of the conplaints that are
recei ved. It would also help the enforcenent staff because
there would be docunentation of when soneone was in the field.
In summary M. Sonerville said that he believes this is a good
start. He said he recognizes that sonme of this is an
evol utionary process, but believes this is a nove in the right
di rection.

Nunber 1521

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to the handout on definitions
[ Sec. 08.54.790. DEFINITIONS.] in which both the guide and
outfitters are considered a service. He asked for clarification
that transporters are not considered a service.

MR. SOMERVI LLE suggested that Representative Guttenberg | ook at
transportation services in AS 08.55.010 where it exenpts air
taxi operators who take big game [hunters], incidental to their
other activities. So if transporters are doing this service for
this purpose then it would be covered, but if it is incidental
to other activities then the service would not be covered, he
expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if it would be the board's
intention to include transporters.

MR. SOMVERVI LLE replied yes. The board believes it is inportant
to include all air taxi operators or transporters that take
hunters and big gane to ensure that sone kind of reporting
requirenent is met.

Number 1584

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM said that Section 23 of HB 442 would anend
Al aska statute that pertains to the waiting period for reporting

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 20, 2004



vi ol ati ons. It raises the nunber of days from 20 days to 40
days. She asked M. Sonerville to comrent on that change.

MR. SOMERVI LLE suggested that she check with the Departnent of
Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnment on the rationale behind that
change.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH suggested that the change in reporting
time was likely inplenented in an effort to protect the
consumer.

MR. SOVERVI LLE commented that one of the major purposes of the
board is to provide protection to the consuner, the industry,
and the state. He added that well-regulated wldlife
popul ations that are used by transporters is a benefit to us
all.

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM referred to page 2, line 4, where the makeup
of the seven nenbers of the board are outlined. She asked M.
Somerville what his feelings are on the makeup of the seven
nmenber board.

MR. SOMVERVI LLE commented that his personal view is that this is
a reasonable articulation of the nunber of people. He said that
if the bill is expanded to address nore of the air taxi industry
issues then it mght be inportant to adjust the nmenbership
accordingly.

Nunmber 1763
REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA referred to page 11, line[s 14 though]
17, where there is a change in the revocation standard, which

r eads:

(d) The board [DEPARTMENT] shall pernmanently revoke a

transporter license or any class of guide license if
the board [DEPARTMENT] finds after a hearing that the
license was obtained through fraud, decei t, or

i ntentional [INNOCENT] m srepresentation.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA pointed out that the way the |aw reads
now it says that the board can revoke a license if it is found
after a hearing that the |icense was obtained through fraud,
deceit, or "innocent" m srepresentation. The bill would change
that word to "intentional." She commented that the statutes
reads a lot nore logically to her wwth the change in | anguage

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 20, 2004



Representative Kerttula asked M. Sonerville if this was an
error.

MR. SOVERVI LLE suggested that she ask soneone on staff about
t hat point.

Nunber 1832

MATT ROBUS, Di rect or, Di vi sion of WIldlife Conservati on,
Departnent of Fish and Gane, testified on HB 442, and answered

gquestions from the nenbers. He explained that since the Board
of Gane and the division work so closely together nuch of what
he says will sound famliar to nmenber Sonerville's presentation.

Al t hough the three departnments nost involved in the transporter
and qguiding industries have net, there has not yet been
consensus wWith respect to HB 442.

MR ROBUS told the nenbers that he believes this is a very
i nportant issue. He said that over the years he has worked with
the Board of Gane in its attenpt to regulate wldlife
popul ati ons. He said he believes that there is at |east one
i nportant conponent of resource wldlife nmanagenent for which
the Board of Gane is not well equipped to handle. M. Robus
pointed out that the authority the Board of Ganme has and that
the departnent works with are focused on biological nanagenent.
Wen there is a biological problem it can be dealt wth

effectively, he coment ed. When the board, with the
departnment's input, adjusts seasons, bag limts, methods and
means for hunting, it can and does provide for sustainable
harvests of Alaska's wldlife popul ations. The Board of Gane

also allocates wldlife resources between users according to
provisions in several state statutes, including the subsistence
statute. These are based on the abundance of the wldlife
popul ation and the relationship to the demand from hunters.

Number 1945
MR. ROBUS explained that when it cones to the conflicts between

different groups of hunters the Board of Gane's tools are poorly
adapted because it was not originally created to handle these

i ssues. In many cases the conflicts are societal and not
biological. A body to regulate societal problens would be much
nore successful in filling in the gap in nmanagenent that

presently exists, he sunmmari zed.

MR. ROBUS said for exanple, one of the common conflicts that
occurs are between |local and rural hunters, and non-I ocal

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 20, 2004



hunters of all types that are brought into an area and which
i npedes each others interests in hunting. These are often
related to how different groups are distributed in space and
time in the field. He explained that it often occurs bel ow the
point where there is a biological issue that needs to be dealt
with in some kind of restriction in hunting opportunities. I n
those situations the Department of Fish and Gane and the Board
of Game can do little to inprove the situation, he stated. The
board cannot elimnate hunter groups, | i ke non-residents
hunters, who always seem to get the blame for problens unless
there is a real biological need to do so. Gven the inpacts to
the gquiding industry and the revenue to the state, the
elimnation of the hunter groups should not be considered a
successful solution anyway, he said.

Number 2016

MR. ROBUS told the nmenbers that for these reasons he believes it
is necessary for the state to effectively nmanage the activities
of big gane guiding, outfitting, and the transporter industry as
a conplinent to what the Board of Gane is equipped to do. He
pointed out that the only pathways the Board of Ganme and the
Department of Fish and Gane have in elimnating hunter conflicts

are draconian. It would have to elimnate a group of hunters or
a type of access, and that is not a very satisfactory solution
he comment ed. M. Robus went on to say that the lack of good

regul atory handles on these industries has neant that the only
allocation ability avail able has been on the part of the federal
governnent on federal lands. The state has had to give up sone
degree of authority on the nanagenment of hunting on federal
| ands because the departnent |acks the authority to allocate
between the different parts of these industries, he explained.
M. Robus summarized that although there is not a consensus
opinion yet, he is testified today to validate the need of such
| egi sl ati on.

Nunber 2120

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Robus how bad the conflicts
have becone. She questioned whether the Board of Gane w |l be
forced to close areas to hunting.

MR. ROBUS replied that the board is already in the mddle of
those kinds of problens. The Upper Kobuk River is a good
exanple where in the last couple of years the board got very
close to enacting a controlled use area which would not allow
transported hunters and non-resident hunters because of the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 20, 2004



| evel of conflict with |ocal users. Since then some of that
problem shifted to other areas of the state, he comented. At
the board neeting next week the sane problem will be addressed
in the Mddl e Kuskokwim in units 19A and 19B, where there are a
|l ot of local rural users with a tradition of using the area, and
there are also both guided and wunguided hunters who
traditionally have conme into the area. In recent years, wth
the noose populations not doing very well, the problem has
escalated into a big allocation issue, and may result in hunter
groups bei ng excluded, M. Robus expl ai ned.

Nunber 2200

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked M. Robus if the fines play an
integral part in what the departnent is trying to achieve.

MR. ROBUS reiterated his statenent that three departnents have
net to cone to sone consensus on this. Those departnents are
the Departnent of Public Safety, the Departnent of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent, and the Departnent of Fish and Gane. Even
t hough fish and gane biol ogists are usually deputized to do sone
enforcenment, the Departnent of Fish and Gane is not the primary
enf orcenment agency, he explained. M. Robus said that he would
defer the answer to that question to the other two departnents.

Nunber 2260

JOE KLUTSCH, Menber, Al aska Professional Hunters Association,
testified on HB 442 and answered questions from the nenbers. He
told the nmenbers that he has lived in Rural Al aska for 32 years
as an assistant guide, owner of a snmall sportfishing guide
busi ness, and has been a registered guide since 1979. In 1973
the original Guide License and Control Board was established.
Even as an assistant guide he told the nenbers he attended
everyone of those neetings through the 1970s and into the 1980s.
It was quite a learning process that provided him with sone
hi storical perspective on this issue. In 1989 the Big Gane
Commerci al Service Board was formed and he attended all of those
neetings as well, he said.

Nunber 2305

MR.  KLUTSCH told the nenbers that there are a nunber of
justifications that menbers  of the association see in
reestablishing a board. First of all it is a public forum that
allows for interaction between all the effected parties. Not

just guides and transporters, but the land nmanagers as well.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 20, 2004



That has been absent for the |ast seven or eight years and has
caused a lot of problens. It has created a disconnect in the
enforcement and establishnent of regulations, he said. M.
Klutsch explained that there is no substitute for this forum
There is nowhere else to hear other people's issues and
concerns. There has been an effort to do this through phone
calls and e-mails, but it does not work, he stated.

VR. KLUTSCH pointed out another problem related to the
sunsetting of the board. When this occurred Al aska abrogated
many of its regulatory and nanagenent responsibilities to
various federal agencies such as the U S. National Park Service,
the U S. Fish and WIldlife Service, and the U S. Forest Service,
he expl ai ned. M. Klutsch clarified that w thout the board in
pl ace federal agencies began to take it upon thenselves to begin
to desi gn permtting schenes and regul atory schenes
i ndependently to deal with situations that they were really not
famliar wth. M. Klutsch told the nenbers that under the
former board's process these individuals would attend, have
their say, could hear what the other concerns were, and at the
end of the process a regulation would be developed that
refl ected everyone's needs. He pointed out that when there is a
board process there is an institutional knowl edge or a
continuous flow of historical background and know edge. As the
adm ni strati on changes a new director and new people cone on who
do not have the background or collective nmenory to understand
how the board has arrived at this point and where it needs to
go, he explained. M. Klutsch said that a board is able to work
through the various bureaucracies and respond in a nore tinely
fashi on. If it is done admnistratively the same process can
take nonths or years and requires trenmendous effort on the part
of industry to influence the outcone of regulations.

Nunber 2478

MR.  KLUTSCH comented that Representative Sanuels did an
excellent job in covering the issue of the different agencies

t hat nanage | and. There are seven agencies in all, five state
agencies and two federal agencies. He asked the nenbers to
remenber that each of these agencies has different nmanagenent
responsibilities and nanagenent statenents. M. Kl ut sch
coomented that it is extrenely difficult for anyone to
individually deal wth each of these agencies which would result
in regulations that reflect industries needs. There has been
concern over the years that nore regul ati ons have been devel oped
than are needed. The gquiding industry does not want nore

regul ations, but nore effective, enforceable regulations, M.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 20, 2004



Kl utsch stated. There has been a real absence of that in past
years, and it is the industry's hope that this bill wll
acconplish those goals. He said he believes a board wll be
able to acconplish these goals in a neasured manner.

Nunber 2540

MR,  KLUTSCH said in summary that he cannot overstate how
inportant the nmenbers of the industry and association feel the
establishment of this board is. This issue has been extensively
di scussed and there is w despread support for the reinstitution
of a board. The industry wants the board to be fair and to work
effectively to maintain a proper nmanagenent system in the state
of Al aska, he concluded. This legislation will defend wildlife
managenment and provide stability in both the guiding and
transporter industries.

Nunber 2579

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if M. Klutsch knows why the board was
el i m nat ed.

MR. KLUTSCH responded that there were a conbination of factors.
He said he believes there was confusion on the part of sone
menbers of the public and several legislators as to the value
and function of the board. It was perceived that the board was
msdirected and was creating wunnecessary regulations which
served as inpedinents to the industry.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if M. Kl utsch believes this new
| egi sl ation would address sonme of those issues. How is this
bill different than what was in place before.

MR. KLUTSCH said he thinks the organization and makeup of this
board, which includes representation of guides, transporters,
and nenbers of public, and with the input from state and federal
agencies could be far nore responsive. He told the nenbers that
the audit report was very favorable in that the prior board was
responsi ve and cost effective. He said he believes this board
could be an inprovenent over the previous board because the
results of an absence of the board is known.

CO CHAIR MASEK invited Representatives Sanuels and Fate to join
the nmenbers at the commttee table.

Nunber 2715

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 20, 2004



PAUL JOHNSON testified on HB442 and answered questions from the
menbers. He told the nenbers that he has been a guide for 30
years and a |odge owner in Southeast Al aska. He pointed out
that this industry is not one that has conme forward to the state
to ask for loans, disaster relief, or advertising. The industry
has done it thenselves, but what it is asking for now is
reasonable regulations so this $110 mllion industry can stay
viable. It is losing ground, he stated.

MR.  JOHNSON commented that the Departnent of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnment cannot address the problens facing the
i ndustry in-house. The industry is wlling to pay for and do
this thensel ves, he stated. For exanple, there are problens in
one part of the state that do not exist in another part, and on-
going issues with agencies that fornmerly were directed to the

board where conprom ses were worked out, he explained. One
point that needs to be addressed is the issue of rural needs.
This bill provides for tw private |andholders to sit on the

board, which he believes is inportant as there are over 44
mllion acres of privately owned |land in Al aska. Wen the board
got sunsetted it was working on including people in the econony
in rural areas. There were testings in sone rural areas and in-
roads were being nade. He said that it is an evolutionary
process and believes it needs to go forward.

Nunmber 2836

MR. JOHNSON said that he believes that it is essential to have
this board's interaction with Board of Gane nenbers. He told
the nenbers that currently there is a huge disconnect going on
between the state departnents. M. Johnson believes problens
Wi th transporters cannot be resolved through statute and nust be
done through regul ation because the issues are so conpl ex. M.
Johnson said he believes that these problens are best addressed
through a board process where everyone gets a chance to have
t heir say.

MR. JOHNSON responded to an earlier question as to the reason
this board was sunsetted, by providing the coomttee with sone
hi storical background. He said that the board got a vote of 38
to 1 vote to extend the sunset [in the Al aska House of
Representatives], and the bill was sent to the Al aska State
Senate where it was held in committee. There was never a vote
in the senate, if it had come to the floor for a vote, it would
have passed, he stated.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 20, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that is the infornmation he was
| ooki ng for.

Nunber 2894

CO CHAIR MASEK asked M. Johnson to comment on the question
Representative GQuttenberg nentioned concerning the definition of
gui des versus guide/outfitter

MR. JOHNSON explained that in territorial days the U S. Fish and
Wldlife Service handled the guiding industry, then in 1972 the
gui de board was established. There were a nunber of issues that
needed to be addressed so the legislature setup a task force

Henry Springer was the chair. The result was that several
outfitters were grandfathered in as guide/outfitters. M.
Johnson commented that he realizes this is a bit confusing. He
explained that the task force put hats on different people.
Part of the problemthat occurred is that during the work of the
task force a decision cane down on the "comon use clause”
called the Oasichek decision [Owsichek v. State Quide Licensing
and Control Board] which that raised the ire of one particular
senator. M. Johnson went on to say that the hats were put on,
a new board was created which expanded its purview beyond just a
gui de board, it becane a commercial services board that included
transporters. It also included a private |andholder and the
board of game. It had an excellent audit, and it was paying its
own way, he said.

TAPE 04-6, SIDE B
Number 2976

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM asked if M. Johnson would be confortable
commenting on an earlier questions she asked and referred to
page 12, line 14, where there is a change in reporting from 20
days to 40 days.

MR. JOHNSON responded that the reason for the change in days is
that those who are in the field and have two 10-day hunts, back
to back, find that the cut off days in reporting violations can
create problens. For exanple, if a guide conmes back and reports
a violation on the 22nd day, there is an automatic fine, M.
Johnson added. A 40-day time period allows that extra tinme that
may be necessary when considering weather conditions and other
things that could happen in the field, he explained. The change
in time wll not inpact any investigation that may take place,
he not ed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 20, 2004



Nunmber 2885

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM asked M. Johnson what the current process is
in ternms of reporting a violation.

MR. JOHNSON replied that he has never reported a violation so he
cannot honestly speak from experience. He told the nenbers that
if there were a violation he would call the public safety
officer in Hoonah on the phone to advise him and the officer
woul d conme straight out.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked M. Johnson how high the new
maxi mum fi ne woul d be under the new st at ut e.

MR, JOHNSON said he believes it was raised to $5, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH said he believes the maximm fine
before was set at $30, 000.

MR, JOHNSON said he could not comment. He said that is one of
the unfortunate aspects of not having a board because if there
were one he would be better advi sed.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH clarified that the board will establish
the fines at their discretion.

MR, JOHNSON said that is correct. He told the nenbers that when
there was a board, t he Depar t ment of Publ i c Saf ety
representative would attended the board neetings, the board
menbers would interact with the departnent, and regul ati ons were
established that worked in the field. Al the work that went
into that task force just fell through the cracks and that is
sad, he said.

COCHAIR MASEK referred to an earlier question posed by
Representative Kerttula about Section 19 where the |anguage was
changed from "innocent"” to "intentional". She asked M. Johnson
to comment on that point.

MR, JOHNSON replied that he likes the word intentional rather
t han i nnocent.

CO CHAIR MASEK announced that Representative Gatto has joined
the neeting at 2: 04 p. m

Nunmber 2686

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 20, 2004



RI CK URI ON, Director, Division of CGccupational Li censi ng,
Department of Community and Econom c¢ Devel opnent, testified in

support of HB 442 and answered questions from the nenbers. He
t hanked the guiding industry for bringing this bill forward as
the system is broken and needs to be fixed. The division has

been criticized because it is not vigorously enforcing the |aws
and not fining people thousands of dollars. He told the nenbers
that the division is absolutely hanstrung. In recent nonths
there have been a nunber of conplaints against guides. Sone are
probably justified and sone not, but there is no way to tell
because there is no contract and nothing in witing, he
explained. It is sinply a "he said versus he said" situation.

MR. URION explained that the laws are witten in such a way that
it cannot be interpreted. For exanple, two nonths ago there was
a request from a guide who wanted the division to define in

witing what "in the field" neans. M. Uion comented that it
sounds |like a reasonable request; however, he is not able to do
that. 1In this case there is a lake with a small conmunity and a
school at one end. This guide has a house that is |ocated 3

mles from that community that is only accessible by boat or
plane. He lives there year-round. M. Uion asked if the guide
is in the field. The answer is no, he said. Three mles from
that community is a cabin and another guide who uses that cabin

only during the hunting season. 1Is he in the field? The answer
is yes, he stated. M. Uion comented that with laws |ike that
how can the division give any fines. The division cannot even

define "in the field."

MR. URION sunmarized that the system is broken and needs the
| egi slature's attention to fix it. The division has specific
recomendations to make it better.

Nunber 2574

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked for clarification on the house versus
t he cabi n.

MR URION explained that he is talking about tw different
gui des, one who lives in a house, and the other who stays in a
cabin during hunting season. He commented that the guide's
cabin is twice as big as the other guide's house. Size does not
enter into it.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if the house is a pernmanent abode. He
commented that should be the defining factor between the two.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 20, 2004



MR URION replied that this punishes the guy who goes out and
lives in the bush.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF responded that he does not want to see
soneone punished for living in the bush. Living in a pernmnent
abode can nean that an individual can get a resident fishing
| icense for instance. A permanent abode can be a recreational
vehicl e (RV) on bl ocks.

Nunber 2498

ROBERT HARDY, registered big ganme guide, testified on HB 442 and
answered questions from the nenbers. He shared that he has a
seasonal hone outside of Wasilla, and lives the rest of the year
in the Talkeetna Muntains where he works as a registered big
gane guide and an eco-tourism operator. M. Hardy told the
menbers that he is testifying in opposition to HB 442. He
acknowl edged that there are issues with the transporter/guide
industry as it currently exists.

MR. HARDY explained that he has w tnessed and suffered through
the frustration of the Board of Game process. As both a nenber
of the public and forner nenber of the board he recognizes the
issues related to allocation between the two industries and

ot her Al askan residents, both rural and non-rural. M. Hardy
said that he does not believe this issue can be addressed in the
bill as it is currently witten. Wat occurred in the past with

the Big Ganme Commrercial Services Board was a disfunctionality
that was brought about by a board that was l|argely conposed of
i ndustry peers or the "good old boys club" that benefited
itself, he stated.

Number 2374

MR. HARDY said that he does not believe this legislation is in
the best interest of the resource for other Al askans. W t hout

creating sonmething in statute that addresses the protection of

ot her Al askans' interest he said he does not see the benefit of

creating a board that generates regulations for itself. He
suggested the nenbers |ook at other ways to address the real

i ssues, such as the nunber of operators in the field and the
nunber of their clientele. M. Hardy suggested that to
acconplish it would be necessary to reinvent an area system
under a limted entry perspectives for the industries and then
set a board within that statute to establish regul ations.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 20, 2004



CO-CHAIR MASEK announced that the committee will continue to
take public testinony, and there will be additional hearings on
HB 442. She announced that the bill will be held in commttee.

HB 345- CAMPSI TE FEES: DI SABLED VETERANS/ SENI ORS

Nunber 2274

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced that the next order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO. 345, "An Act relating to fees for state
par k devel oped canpsites; and providing for an effective date.”

CO-CHAI R DAHLSTROM told the nenbers the HB 345, version 23 LS-
1299\ A, is before the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if there were previous anmendnents
to the bill.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM replied that to her know edge there were no
ot her previous anendnents.

Number 2209

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that the reason Representative
St epovich asked if there were previous anendnents is that as he
[ Representative Gatto] was going through the naterials and found
two other anendnents that were |abeled Anendnent 1 and Anendnent
2. He just wanted to verify that the amendnent the nenbers are
| ooking at is Amendnment 1 and not Anendnent 3. Representati ve
Gatto said he understands that Representative Fate offered the
amendnent s.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that is correct.

The commttee took an at-ease from2:15 p.m to 2:17 p. m

CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM clarified that there were sone anendnents
that were handed out during the |ast hearing, but they were not
adopt ed. She announced that the commttee will nove forward
W th Representative Stepovich's anendnent.

Number 2140

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved Amendnent 1, |abeled 23-LS1299\A. 2,
Luckhaupt, 2/4/04, which reads as foll ows:

Page 2, lines 5 - 8:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 20, 2004



Delete all material.

Insert "(d) The department shall issue (1) free
of charge to a disabled veteran [VETERANS] of this
country who is a resident of this state, or (2) for an
annual fee of $10 to a resident of this state who is
60 vyears of age or older, an annual state park
devel oped canpsite permt."

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH comented that as a veteran a person
has paid his/her dues. He said he believes since the person is
a disabled veteran neans all the nore that it should not be
necessary to get nore from hinfher. Representative Stepovich
said he strongly supports veterans. Wen he thinks of a
di sabl ed veteran he thinks that person is disabled and served so
that he can be where he is today.

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM asked if there are any objections to the
notion. There being no objection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunber 2043

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legi slature, testified on behalf of Representative Fate, sponsor

of HB 345. He proposed the that the commttee address two
proposed anendnments to HB 345 having to do wth canpsite
| ocati on. He explained that in the urban areas of Al aska
private canpsites are often avail able. It is sonewhat unfair

for the State to conpete directly with these private for profit
conpani es, he said. M. Pound suggested the follow ng anmendnent
be considered by the commttee:

Page 1, line 9, after "to use a"
| nsert "non-urban"

Page 2, line 5, after "Sec. 2"
Insert "(f) In this section "non-urban" is defined as
a state park devel oped canpsite |ocated outside of a
ten-mle radius of a city center."”
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what nunber of this anmendnent is.
CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM repl i ed Amendnment 2.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noved Anmendnent 2. [ Amendnent | anguage
previ ousl y st at ed]

There being no objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- February 20, 2004



CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM announced that the bill wll be held in
commttee for additional testinony.
ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:20 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 20, 2004



